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LAW OFFICES OF ELIEL CHEMERINSKI
ELIEL CHEMERINSKI, Esq. / Bar No.: 143740
15260 VENTURA BLVD.

SuIte1810

SHERMAN OAKsS, CA 91403
PHONE: (818) 990-9977

FAX: (818) 990-9978

ehel @ dhemering Kt , QM

Attorneys for Defendant
RICARDO ASCH

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
SOUTHERN DIVISION
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA CASE NO. SA CR 96-55-GLT
MOTION TO DISMISS INDICTMENT

Plaintiff FOR VIOLATION OF ARTICLE 14(7)
OF THE INTERNATIONAL COVENANT ON

V. CIVIL AND POLITICAL RIGHTS

AND INTERNATIONAL PRINCIPLES OF
NON BIS IN IDEM, COMITY AND

RICARDO ASCH ABSTENTION
Defendant Hon.:
Date:
Time:

Ricardo Asch, through counsel, moves to dismiss the indictment
filed in the above-styled cause on the grounds that the prosecution
in this case constitutes a second prosecution for offenses for which
Mr. Asch has already been tried and acquitted, and that 1it,
therefore, violates the double jeopardy provision contained in
Article 14(7) of the International Covenant on Civil and Political
Rights (attached as Appendix I), the international doctrine of non
bis in idem, and international principles of comity and abstention.
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FACTS

1. Mr. Asch is charged with 20 counts of Mail Fraud, Causing
an Act to Be Done in Violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Section 1341 and 2; two counts of Violation of Title 26, United
States Code Section 7206(1) - Making or Subscribing a False Income
Tax Return; and one count of Violation of Title 18, United States
Code Section 371 - Conspiracy to Defraud the Unites States. These
offenses are alleged to have occurred between 1991 to 1994, in the
County of Orange, California.

2. Mr. Asch was tried, and acquitted of all charges by the
Federal Court of Argentina. (Judgment of Acquittal attached as
Exhibit II)

3. Pursuant to the judgment of acquittal by the Argentinean
Federal Court, the United States withdrew its request to have

Ricardo Asch to be extradited from Argentina.

MEMORANDUM OF LAW

I. Ricardo Ash’s Second Prosecution Violates Article 14(7) of

the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights

The United States Constitution provides that, "all treaties made,
or which shall be made, under the authority of the United States,
shall be the Supreme Law of the Land; and the Judges in every State
shall be bound thereby, anything in the Constitution or Law of any
State to the contrary notwithstanding." U.S. Const. art.vVI, §2, cl.
2. On June 8, 1992, President Bush deposited the instrument of
ratification for the International Covenant on Civil and Political
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Rights (hereinafter "ICCPR") with the United Nations
Secretary-General. It became effective for the United States on
September 8, 1992. As a properly ratified treaty, the ICCPR is a part
of the supreme law of the land.

Article 14(7) of the ICCPR provides that " [n]lo one shall be
liable to be tried or punished again for an offence for which he has
already been finally convicted or acquitted in accordance with the
law and penal procedure of each country." This provision embodies the

international concept of double jeopardy or, non bis in idem. which

comes from the Roman law maxim, "Nemo debet bis vexari pro eadem
causa." (No one should be twice harassed for the same cause.) The
principle derives from a sense of fairness, and can be analogized to
the civil law concept of res judicata. The concept goes back to
ancient times and is found throughout the civil as well as the common’

law. See Bartkus v. Illinois, 359 U.S. 121, 151-55 (1959) (Black, J.,

dissenting) (outlining the history of the double jeopardy concept) .
The principle is common to legal systems generally and in many
countries is constitutionally mandated. It has achieved international
recognition by its inclusion in many widely ratified human rights

instruments, of which the ICCPR is one.

The international principle of double jeopardy, or non bis i

idem is broader than modern constructions of the Constitution's

Double Jeopardy Clause. Numerous examples of the application of the
concept on an international level are found in extradition treaties
where double jeopardy clauses prohibiting extradition or prosecution
of persons already prosecuted and convicted or acquitted by the

requested country are quite common. Galanis v. Pallanck , 568 F.2d

234, 238-39 (2d Cir. 1977); See also Sindona v. Grant, 619 F.2d 167,
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177 (2d Cir. 1980) (citing various extradition treaties containing
such double jeopardy clauses). Federal courts have recognized that
double jeopardy provisions in treaties may contain provisions barring
more prosecutions than may otherwise be barred under current
interpretations of the Constitution's Double Jeopardy Clause. See

Sindona v Grant , 619 F.2d at 178 (2d Cir. 1980) (double jeopardy

provision in extradition treaty between United States and Italy
broader than the Constitution's Double Jeopardy Clause); United

States v. Jurado-Rodriquez,907 F. Supp. 568 (E.D. New York 1995)

(charge dismissed under broad scope of non bis in idem where United

States sought to prosecute defendant for crime for which he had
already been convicted in Luxembourg). The international concept of
double jeopardy is so ingrained that the principle may even be
applicable in the absence of a treaty provision. See Restatement
(Third) of The Foreign Relations Law of the United States 476 cmt. c
(1987) ("[Tlhe prohibition against double jeopardy may be applicable

even if not spelled out in an applicable extradition treaty.")

Article 14(7) of the ICCPR, to which both the United States and
Argentina are signatories, and which is part of the Supreme Law of
the Land, clearly prohibits a second prosecution of Mr. Asch for the
same acts for which he has already been duly tried, and acquitted.
The United States has entered a treaty obligation which it must
honor. Basic notions of fairness require that Mr. Asch not be
reprosecuted for an eighteen year old matter. This should be
especially true in a case such as this where the United States has
ratified a treaty with a clause specifically prohibiting such action.

The United States government has entered into a (solemn) treaty

obligation that it must now uphold. To prosecute and impose

-4 -
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punishment on a man who has already been tried and acquitted would
constitute a great injustice. In evaluating whether to dismiss this
second prosecution as required by the ICCPR, the Court should

consider the following:

In a day when the confidence and trust of the American
people in their government ebbs, it is critical that the
United States government keep its word and live up to its
obligations. If doing so means that it must forego
convicting one person of a crime, that is a small price to
pay to preserve the integrity of our institutions.

The foundation of the Republic will not crack if the
United States fails to put [the defendant] in a federal
prison. It will shatter, however, if the American people
come to believe that their government is not to be
trusted. A deal is a deal, and the government's word must
be its bond.

United States v. San Pedro, 781 F. Supp. 761, 776 (S.D. Fla. 1991).

Mr. Asch’s reprosecution violates Article 14(7) of the ICCPR as well

as the general international principle of non bis i idem.

Accordingly, the above-styled indictment against Mr. Asch should be

dismissed.

II. International Comity Compels Dismissal of the Indictment

Even in the absence of a treaty obligation, the indictment
should be dismissed based on international principles of comity, and
abstention. Under the international principle of comity the
Argentinean Jjudgment of acquittal of Mr. Asch is entitled to

recognition. The Supreme Court has defined comity as:

neither a matter of absolute obligation, on the one hand,
nor of mere courtesy and good will, upon the other. But it
is the recognition which one nation allows within its
territory to the legislative, executive or judicial acts of
another nation, having due regard both to international

-5
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duty and convenience and to the rights of its own citizens,
or of other persons who are under the protection of its
laws.

Hilton v. Guyot, 159 U.S. 113, 163-64, (1895); see also Philadelphia

Gear Corp. v. Pkiladelphia Gear de Mexico. S.A., 44 F.3d 187, 191 (3d

Cir. 1994) ("Under the principle of international comity, a domestic
court normally will give effect to executive, legislative, and

judicial acts of a foreign nation.") (quoting Remington Rand

Corporation-Delaware v. Business Sys. Inc., 830 F.2d 1260, 1266 (3d

Cir. 1987)). Such deference "fosters international cooperation and
encourages reciprocity, thereby promoting predictability and

stability through satisfaction of mutual expectations." Spatola v.

United States, 925 F.2d 615, 618 (2d Cir. 1991) (quoting Laker

Airways. ILtd. v. Sabena, Belgian World Airlines, 731 F.2d 909, 937

(D.C. Cir. 1984)).
The Supreme Court has required that certain criteria be
satisfied before a court of the United States recognizes a foreign

nation's judgment. The Court stated:

[W]le are satisfied that where there has been opportunity
for a full and fair trial abroad [1l] before a court of
competent Jurisdiction, [2] conducting the trial upon
regular proceedings, [3] after due citation or voluntary
appearance of defendant, [4] and under a system of
jurisprudence likely to secure an impartial administration
of justice...., [5] and there is nothing to show either
prejudice in the court, ... or fraud in procuring the
judgment....the merits of the case should not, in an action
brought in this country upon the judgment, be tried afresh,
as on a new trial or an appeal...

Hilton v, Guyot, 159 U.S. at 202-203. If these criteria are

satisfied, then there should not be a second trial in this country
for a case already decided on the merits in a foreign country.

In the case of Wilson v. Marchington, 127 F.3d 805, 808 (9th

-6-
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Cir.1997) the Ninth Circuit noted that "The extent to which the
United States, or any state, honors the judicial decrees of foreign
nations is a matter of choice, governed by 'the comity of nations.'
"(quoting Hilton v. Guyot, 159 U.S. 113, 163, 16 S.Ct. 139, 40 L.Ed.
95 (1895)). It pointed out that the Second Circuit has noted that,
where comity is at issue, a court properly begins its analysis "with
an inclination to accord deference to" a foreign court's
adjudication.

In Turner Entertainment. Co. v. Degeto Film, 25 F.3d 1512 (11lth Cir.

1994)the issue before the court was "whether a federal court, which
properly has Jurisdiction over an action, should exercise its
jurisdiction where parallel proceedings are ongoing in a foreign
nation and a judgment has been reached on the merits in the
litigation abroad." Id. at 1518. The Turner court concluded that once
a judgment on the merits is reached in cases involving parallel
proceedings in American and foreign courts, "failure to defer to the
judgment would have serious implications for the concerns of
international comity." Id. at 1521. The court explained that once the
foreign litigation is completed on the merits and a final Jjudgment
reached, the parallel American action should be dismissed. Id. at
1523. Accordingly, the court in Turner deferred to the German forum
which had already rendéered a judgment on the merits of the case.
Because the German appeal had not yet been finalized and attorneys'
fees had not yet been determined, the court stayed the American
action pending resolution of these issues with instructions to
dismiss the action once the German litigation was complete.

In this case, there has been an opportunity for a full and fair

trial in Argentina before a court of competent jurisdiction

-7
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conducting regular proceedings under a system of jurisprudence likely
to secure an impartial administration of justice. There is nothing to
suggest or show prejudice in the Argentinean court or fraud in
procuring the judgment. Therefore, the Supreme Court criteria has
been satisfied and Mr. Asch’s case should be dismissed under the

principle of international comity or abstention.

WHEREFORE Ricardo Asch, through counsel, respectfully requests
that the indictment in the above-styled cause be dismissed based on
Article 14(7) of the ICCPR and international principles of non bis i

idem, comity and abstention.

Respectfully Submitted

i, |

ELIEL CHEMERINSKI, Esq

Certificate of Service

I hereby certify that the foregoing was served personally on July 30,

2010 upon the following:

U.S Attorney’s Office
411 West urth Stree
Santa Ana A 92701

2 ]

-8-

Motion to D#smiss Indictment - CASE NO. SA CR 96-55-GLT




"Case 8:96-cr-00055-AHS Document 298  Filed 08/10/10 Page 9 of 50 Page ID #:16 °

APPENDIX 1



Case 8:96-cr-00055-AHS Document 298  Filed 08/10/10 Page 10 of 50 Page ID #:17

3. International Covenant on Civil
and Political Rights

ol and opensd for signature, ratification and accession by
<ral Assembly resolution 2200 A (XXT) of 16 December 1966

“RY INTO FORCE; 23 March 1976, in accordance with article 49.

PREAMBLE
e States Parties to the present Covenant,

nsidering that, in accordance with the principles
aimed in the Charter of the United Nations, recog-
+ of the inherent dignity and of the equal and
aable rights of all members of the human family is
‘oundation of freedom, justice and peace in the
)D

-cognizing that these rights derive from the inherent
i(y of the human person,

cognizing that, in accordance with the Universal
ration of Human Rights, the ideal of free human
s enjoying civil and political freedom and freedom
fear and want can only be achieved if conditions
ccated whereby everyone may enjoy his civil and
-al rights, as well as his economic, social and
-al rights,

nsidering the obligation of States under the Charter
. United Nations to promote universal respect for,
bservance of, human rights and freedoms,

. :!zing that the individual, having duties to other
juals and to the community to which he belongs,
zr a responsibility to strive for the promotion and
-.ace of the rights recognized in the present Cove-

-ee upon the following articles:

PART [

Article 1

Aul peoples have the right of self-determination,
.ue of that right they freely determine their political

and freely pursue their economic, social and
al development.

2. Al peoples may, for their own ends, freely dispose
of their natural wealth and resources without prejudice
to any obligations arising out of international economic
co-operation, based upon the principle of mutual benefit,
and international law. In no case may a people be deprived
of its own means of subsistence.

3. The States Parties to the present Covenant, in-
cluding those having responsibility for the administration
of Non-Self-Governing and Trust Territories, shall
promote the realization of the right of self-determina-

tion, and shall respect that right, in conformity with
the provisions of the Charter of the United Nations.

Parr II

Article 2

1. Each State Party to the present Covenant under-
takes to respect and to ensure to all individuals within
its territory and subject to its jurisdiction the rights
recognized in the present Covenant, without distinction
of any kind, such as race, colour, sex, language, re-
ligion, political or other opinion, national or social
origin, property, birth or other status.

2. Where not already provided for by existing legis-
lative or other measures, each State Party to the present
Covenant undertakes to take the necessary steps, in
accordance with its constitutional processes and with the
provisions of the present Covenant, to adopt such legis-
lative or other measures as may be necessary to give
effect to the rights recognized in the present Covenant.

taks. Each State Party to the preseat Covenant under-
es:

(@) To ensure that any person whose rights or free-
doms as herein recognized are violated shall have an
effective remedy, nothwithstanding that the violation has
been committed by persons acting in an official capacity;

(b) To ensure that any person claiming such a remedy
shall have his right thereto determined by competent
judicial, administrative or legislative authorities, or
by any other competent authority provided for by the

legal system of the State, and to develop the possibilitics
of judicial remedy;

(¢) To ensure that the competent authorities shall
enforce such remedies when granted.

Article 3

The States Parties to the present Covenant under-
take to ensure the equal right of men and women to
the enjoyment of all civil and political rights set forth
in the present Covenant, -

Article 4

1. In time of public emergency which threatens the
life of the nation and the existence of which is officially
proclaimed, the States Parties to the present Covenant
may take measures derogating from their obligations
under the present Covenant to the extent strictly re-
quired by the exigencies of the situation, provided that
such measures are not inconsistent with their other
obligations under international law and do not involve
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-mination solely on the yiound of race, colour,
‘anguage, religion or social origin.

No derogation from articles 6, 7, 8 (paragraphs 1
), 11,15, 16 and 18 may be made under this provision.

Any State Party to the present Covenant availing
cl the right of derogation shall immediately inform
‘her States Parties to the present Covenant, through
.termediary of the Secretary-General of the United
ns, of the provisions from which it has derogated
/{ the reasons by which it was actuated. A further
aunication shall be made, through the same inter-
ary, on the date on which it terminates such deroga-

Article 5

Notiing in the present Covenant may be inter-

as implying for any State, group or person any
‘o engage in any activity or perform any act aimed
destruction of any of the rights and freedoms rec-
1 herein or at their limitation to a greater extent
s nrovided for in the present Covenant.

‘There shall be no restriction upon or derogation
any of the fundamental human rights recognized
slnyg in any State Party to the present Covenant
st - law, conventions, regulations or custom on
text that the present Covenant does not recognize
‘shte or that it recognizes them to a lesser extent.

Part IIT
Article 6

{ery human being has the inherent right to life,
.+ shall be protected by law. No one shall be
v 'eprived of his life.

- vvuntries which have not abolished the death

:..icnce of death may be imposed only for the
:iv a3 crimes in accordance with the law in force
inuc of the commission of the crime and not con-

o the provisions of the present Covenant and to
.vention on the Prevention and Punishment of
* - .f Genocide, This penalty can only be carried
't to a final judgement rendered by a com-

. deprivation of life constitutes the crime of

. is understood that nothing in this article
© rize any State Party to the present Covenant
..o 10 any way from any obligation assumed
.- provisions of the Convention on the Preven-
. ”- aishment of the Crime of Genocide.

.ne sentenced to death shall have the right to
1 or commutation of the sentence. Amnesty,
. commutation of the sentence of death may
“a z!l cases.
...ce of death shall not be imposed for crimes

o persons below eighteen years of age and
* ¢ carried out on pregnant women.

" tire in this article shall be invoked to delay
ent the abolition of capital punishment by
.ty to the present Covenant,

Lo

Article 7

. No one shall be subjected to torture or to cruel,
qxhuman or degrading treatment or punishment. In par-
ticular, no one shall be subjected without his free consent
to medical or scientific experimentation.

Article 8

1. No one shall be held in slavery; slavery and the
slave-trade in all their forms shall be prohibited.

2. No one shall be held in servitude.

3. (a) No one shall be required to perform forced
or compulsory labour;
) Pat.agraph 3 (a) shall not be held to preciude,
in countries where imprisonment with hard labour may
be imposed as a punishment for a crime, the performance

of hard labour in pursuance of a sentence to such punish-
ment by a competent court;

(¢) For the purpose of this paragraph the term “forced

or compulsory labour” shall not include:

(i) Any work or service, not referred to in sub-
paragraph (b), normally required of a person
who is under detention in consequence of a
lawful order of a court, or of a person during con-
ditional release from such detention;

(ii) Any service of a military character and, in coun-
trics where conscientious objection is recognized,
any national service required by law of conscien-
tious objectors;

(iii) Any service exacted in cases of emergency or
calamity threatening the life or well-being of the
community;

(iv) Any work or service which forms part of normal
civil obligations.

Article 9

1. Everyone has the right to liberty and security of
person. No one shall be subjected to arbitrary arrest
or detention. No one shall be deprived of his liberty
except on such grounds and in accordance with such
procedure as are established by law.

2. Anyone who is arrested shall be informed, at the
time of arrest, of the reasons for his arrest and shall
be promptly informed of any charges against him.

3. Anyone arrested or detained on a criminal charge
shall be brought promptly before a judge or other officer
authorized by law to exercise judicial power and shall
be entitled to trial within a reasonable time or to release.
It shall not be the general rule that persons awaiting
trial shall be detained in custody, but release may be
subject to guarantees to appear for trial, at'any other
stage of the judicial proceedings, and, should occasion
arise, for execution of the judgement.

4. Anyone who is deprived of his liberty by arrest
or detention shall be entitled to take proceedings before
a court, in order that that court may decide without
delay on the lawfulness of his detention and order his
release if the detention is not lawful.

5. Anyone who has been the victim of unlawful

arrest or detention shall have an enforceable right to
compensation,
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Artic 7
. persons deprived of their liberty shall be
sith humanity and with respect for the inherent
7 the human person.
Accused persons shall, save in exceptional
inces, be segregated from convicted persons

! be subject to separate treatment appropriate
‘atus as unconvicted persons;

used juvenile persons shall be separated from
! brought as speedily as possible for adjudication.

¢ penitentiary system shall comprise treatment
ers the essential aim of which shall be their
ou and social rehabilitation. Juvenile offenders
-egregated from adults and be accorded treat-
ropriate to their age and legal status.

Article 11

shall be imprisoned merely on the ground of
» fulfil a contractual obligation.

Article 12

yone lawfully within the territory of a State
-in that territory, have the right to liberty of
. :nd freedom to choose his residence.

ryone shall be free to leave any country,
.us own,

. above-mentioned rights shall not be subject
sstrictions except those which are provided
‘e necessary to protect national security, public
Le public), public health or morals or the
‘reedoms of others, and are consistent with

' ;hts recognized in the present Covenant.

cae shall be arbitrarily deprived of the right
s own country.

Article 13

4 lawfully in the territory of a State Party.to

1t Covenant may be expelled therefrom only
1ce of & decision reached in accordance with
shall, except where compelling reasons of
..rity otherwise require, be allowed to submit
- against his expulsion and to have his case
v, and be represented for the purpose before,
. ‘nt authority or a person or persons especially
by the competent authority.

Article 14

<crsons shall be equal before the courts and
"1 the determination of any criminal charge

. or of his rights and obligations in a suit
--yone shall be entitled to a fair and public
' a competent, independent and impartial

ablished by law. The Press and the public
.iuded from all or part of a trial for reasons
public order (ordre public) or national security
ocratic society, or when the interest of the
es of the parties so requires, or to the extent
.ssary in the opinion of the court in special
:s where publicity would prejudice the

S ——
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inger.ests of jusuce; but any judgement rendered in a
inal case or in & suit at law shall be made public

crim
Jjuvenile persons otherwise

except where the interest of
requires or the proceedings concern matrimonial disputes

or the guardianship of children.

2. Everyone charged with a criminal offence shall
have the right to be presumed innocent until proved
guilty according to law

3. In the determination of an
against him, everyone shall be entitied to the following
minimum guarantees, in full equality:

(@) To be informed promptly and in detail in a lan-
guage which he understands of the nafure and cause
of the charge against him;

(5) To have adequate time and facilities for the pre-
paration of his defence and to communicate with counsel
of his own choosing;

(c) To be tried without undue delay;

(d) To be tried in his presence, and to defend himself
in person or through legal assistance of his own choosing;
to be informed, if he does not have legal assistance, of
this right; and to have legal assistance assigned to him,
in any case where the interests of justice so require, and
without payment by him in any such case if he does not
have sufficient means to pay for it;

(¢) To examine, or have examined, the witnesses
against him and to obtain the attendance and examina-
tion of witnesses on his behalf under the same con-
ditions as witnesses against him;

() To have the free assistance of an interpreter if
he cannot understand or speak the language used in
court;

(g) Not to be compelled to testify against himself
or to confess guilt.

4. In the case of juvenile persons, the procedure
shall be such as will take account of their age and the
desirability of promoting their rehabilitation.

5. Everyone convicted of a crime shall have the right
to his conviction and sentence being reviewed by a
higher tribunal according to law.

6. When a person has by a final decision been con-
victed of a criminal offence and when subsequently
his conviction has been reversed or he has been par-
doned on the ground that a new or newly discovered
fact shows conclusively that there has been a miscarriage
of justice, the person who has suffered punishment as
a result of such conviction shall be compensated ac-
cording to law, unless it is proved that the non-disclosure
of the unknown fact in time is wholly or partly attributable
to him.

7. No one shall be liable to be tried or punished
again for an offence for which he has already been
finally convicted or acquitted in accordance with the
law and penal procedure of each country.

y -criminal charge

Article 15

1. No one shall be held guilty of any criminal offence
on account of any act or omission which did not constitute
a criminal offence, under national or international




«ne when it was committed. Nor shall a
'y be imposed than the one that was ap-
ic time when the criminal offence was
!, subsequent to the commission of the
sion is made by law for the imposition of
:u1ty, the offender shall benefit thereby.

> in this article shall prejudice the trial
nt of any person for any act or omission
"'me when it was committed, was criminal
"he general principles of law recognized
=ity of nations,

Article 16

-2l have the right to recognition every-
»on before the law.

Article 17

hall be subjected to arbitrary or unlaw-
with his privacy, family, home or corres-
to unlawful attacks on his honour and

> has the right to the protection of the
. interference or attacks,

Article 18

. shall have the right to freedom of
r.nce and religion. This right shall include
= or to adopt a religion or belief of his
-dom, either individually or in community
id in public or private, to manifest his
"-f in worship, observance, practice and

shall be subject to coercion which would
Jom to have or to adopt a religion or

v to manifest one’s religion or beliefs
nly to such limitations as are prescribed
aecessary to protect public safety, order,
's or the fundamental rights and freedoms

=5 Parties to the present Covenant under-
«ect for the liberty of parents and, when
. guardians to ensure the religious and
. of their children in conformity with
L aons,

Article 19

shalt have the right to hold opinions
“ace,

shall have the right to freedom of
right shall include freedom to seek,
- .t information and ideas of all kinds,
ntiers, either orally, in writing or in
. 1 of art, or through any other media

‘se of the rights provided for in para-
uticle carries with it special duties and
.1 may therefore be subject to certain
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restrictions, but these shall
by law and are necessary:

(@) For respect of the rights or reputations of others;
(b)_ For the protection of national security or of
public order (ordre public), or of public health or morals.

Article 20

| 1. Any propaganda for war shall be prohibited by
aw.

2. Any advocacy of national, racial or religious
hatred that constitutes incitement to discrimination,
hostility or violence shail be prohibited by law.

Article 21

The right of peaceful assembly shall be recognized,
No restrictions may be placed on the exercise of this
right other than those imposed in conformity with the
law and which are necessary in a democratic society in
the interests of national security or public safety, public
order (ordre public), the protection of public health or
morals or the protection of the rights and freedoms of
others.

only be such as are provided

Article 22

1. Everyone shall have the right to freedom of asso-
ciation with others, including the right to form and join
trade unions for the protection of his interests.

2. No restrictions may be placed on the exercise of
this right other than those which are prescribed by law
and which are necessary in a democratic society in the
interests of national security or public safety, public
order (ordre public), the protection of public health
or morals or the protection of the rights and freedoms
of others. This article shall not prevent the imposition
of lawful restrictions on members of the armed forces
and of the police in their exercise of this right.

3. Nothing in this article shall authorize States
Parties to the International Labour Organisation Con-
vention of 1948 concerning Freedom of Association and
Protection of the Right to Organize to take legislative
measures which would prejudice, or to apply the law
in such a manner as to prejudice the guarantees pro-
vided for in that Convention.

Article 23

1. The family is the natural and fundamental group
unit of society and is entitled to protection by society
and the State,

2. The right of men and women of marriageable age
to marry and to found a family shall be recognized.

3. No marriage shall be entered into without the
free and full consent of the intending spouses.

4. States Parties to the present Covenant shall take
appropriate steps to ensure equality of rights and res-
ponsibilities of spouses as to marriage, during marriage
and at its dissolution. In the case of dissolution, provision
shall be made for the necessary protection of any children.

Article 24

1. Every child shall have, without any discrimina-
tion as to race, colour, sex, language, religion, national
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igin, property ¢ irth, the right to such
protection as are required by his status
on the part of his family, society and the

. child shall be registered immediately after
~ 1ll have a name.

v child has the right to acquirc a nationality.

Article 25

cn shall have the right and the opportunity,
of the distinctions mentioned in article 2
1 unreasonable restrictions:

ze part in the conduct of public affairs,
rough freely chosen representatives;

‘ote and to be elected at genuine periodic
:ich shall be by universal and equal suffrage

- held by secret ballot, guaranteeing the free
.7 the will of the electors;

ve access, on general terms of equality,
. .>ein his country,

Article 26

.5 are equal before the law and are entitled

- discrimination to the equal protection of
--ds respect, the law shall prohibit any discri-
4 guarantee to all persons equal and effec-
-on against discrimination on any ground
-, colour, sex, language, religion, political
":iom, national or social origin, property,

. status,

Article 27

“ates in which ethnic, religious or linguistic
i:t, persons belonging to such minorities

- dented the right, in community with the

-rs of their group, to enjoy their own cul-
;s and practise their own religion, or to use
1age.

ParT IV
Article 28

hall be established a Human Rights Com-
Jer referred to in the present Covenant
rittee), It shall consist of eighteen members
7y out the functions hereinafter provided.

»amittee shall be composed of nationals
rarties to the present Covenant who shall
- of high moral character and recognized
in the field of human rights, consideration
to the uscfulness of the participation of
- having legal experience.
. 2bers of the Committee shall be elected
- in: their personal capacity.

Article 29

«wbers of the Committee shall be elected
ot from a list of persons possessing the
prescribed in article 28 and nominated

—
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for the purposc oy the
Covenant,

2.' Each State Party to the present Covenant may
nominate not more than two persons. These persons
shall be nationals of the nominating State.

3. A person shall be eligible for renomination.

States Parties to the present

Article 30

1. The initial election shall be held no later than
six months after the date of the entry into force of the
present Covenant,

2. At Jeast four months before the date of each
election to the Committee, other than -an election to
fill a vacancy declared in accordance with article 34,
the Secretary-General of the United Nations shall address
a written invitation to the States Parties to the present
Covenant to submit their nominations for membership
of the Committee within three months.

3. The Secretary-General of the United Nations
shall prepare a list in alphabetical order of all the persons
thus nominated, with an indication of the States Parties
which have nominated them, and shall. submit it to the
States Parties to the present Covenant no later than one
month before the date of each election.

4, Elections of the members of the Committee shall
be held at a meeting of the States Parties to the present
Covenant convened by the Secretary-General of the
United Nations at the Headquarters of the United
Nations. At that meeting, for which two thirds of the
States Parties to the present Covenant shall constitute
a quorum, the persons clected to the Committee shall
be those nominees who obtain the largest number of
votes and an absolute majority of the votes of the rep-
resentatives of States Parties present and voting.

Article 31

1. The Committee may not include more than one
national of the same State.

2. In the election of the Committee, consideration
shall be given to equitable geographical distribution of
membership and to the representation of the different
forms of civilization and of the principal legal systems.

Article 32

1. The members of the Committee shall be elected
for a term of four years. They shall be eligible for re-
election if renominated. However, the terms of nine
of the members elected at the first election shall expire
at the end of two years; immediately after the first
clection, the names of these nine members shall be chosen
by lot by the Chairman of the meeting referred to in
article 30, paragraph 4,

2, Elections at the expiry of office shall be held
in accordance with the preceding articles of this part
of the present Covenant.

Article 33

1. If, in the unanimous opinion of the other mem-
bers, a member of the Committee has ceased to carry




1s for any cause other than absence of
* sracter, the Chairman of the Committee
> Secretary-General of the United Na-
. 'l then declare the seat of that member

ent of the death or the resignation of a
. Committee, the Chairman shall imme-
the Secretary-General of the United
shall declare the seat vacant from the
r the date on which the resignation takes

Article 34

vacancy is declared in accordance with
f the term of office of the member to be
ot expire within six months of the declara-
ncy, the Secretary-General of the United
\otify each of the States Parties to the
at, which may within two months submit
- accordance with article 29 for the purpose
ancy.
:tary-General of the United Nations shall
.1 alphabetical order of the persons thus
shall submit it to the States Parties to
venant. The election to fill the vacancy
- place in accordance with the relevant
is part of the present Covenant.

. er of the Committee elected to fill a
:d in accordance with article 33 shall
.he remainder of the term of the member
= seat on the Committec under the provi-
‘cle.

Article 35

s of the Committee shall, with the ap-
;eneral Assembly of the United Nations,
ents from United Nations resources on
{ conditions as the General Assembly
iving regard to the importance of the
sponsibilities.

Article 36

7y-General of the United Nations shall
sessary staff and facilities for the effec-
;¢ of the functions of the Committee
it Covenant.

Article 37

stary-General of the United Nations shall

sitial meeting of the Committee at the

»f the United Nations.

initial meeting, the Committee shall meet
shall be provided in its rules of procedure.
mittee shall normally meet at the Head-

United Nations or at the United Nations
‘a.

Article 38

-r of the Committee shall, before taking
.nake a solemn declaration in open com-
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mittec that he will perform his functions impartially
and conscientiously.

Article 39

1. The Committee shall elect its officers for a term
of two years. They may be re-elected.

2. The Committee shall establish its own rules of
procedure, but these rules shall provide, inter alia, that:

(a) Twelve members shall constitute a quorum;

(b) Decisions of the Committee shall be made by
a majority vote of the members present.

Article 40 .

1. The States Parties to the present Covenant under-
take to submit reports on the measures they have adopted
which give effect to the rights recognized herein and on
the progress made in the enjoyment of those rights:

(a) Within one year of the entry into force of the present
Covenant for the States Parties concerned;

(b) Thereafter whenever the Committes so requests.
2. All reports shall be submitted to the Secretary-
General of the United Nations, who shall transmit
them to the Committee for consideration. Reports shall
indicate the factors and difficulties, if any, affecting the
implementation of the present Covenant.

3. The Secretary-General of the United Nations
may, after consultation with the Committee, transmit to
the specialized agencies concerned copies of such parts
of the reports as may fall within their field of competence.

4. The Committee shall study the reports submitted
by the States Parties to the present Covenant. It shall
transmit its reports, and such general comments as it
may consider appropriate, to the States Parties. The
Committee may also transmit to the Economic and
Social Council these comments along with the copies of
the reports it has received from States Parties to the
present Covenant.

5. The States Parties to the present Covenant may
submit to the Committee observations on any comments
that may be made in accordance with paragraph 4 of
this article.

Article 41

1. A State Party to the present Covenant may at any
time declare under this article that it recognizes the
competence of the Committee to receive and consider
communications to the effect that a State Party claims
that another State Party is not fulfilling its obligations
under the present Covenmant. Communications under
this article may be received and considered only if sub-
mitted by a State Party which has made a declaration
recognizing in regard to itself the competence of the
Committee. No communication shall be reccived by
the Committee if it concerns a State Party which has
not made such a declaration. Communications received
under this article shall be dealt with in accordance with
the following procedure:

(a) If a State Party to the present Covenant con-
siders that another State Party is not giving effect to the
provisions of the present Covenant, it may, by written

13
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-lion, bring the matter to the attention of transmitted under this article; no further communica-

’arty. Within three months after the receipt tion by any State Party shall be received after the noti-
munijcation the receiving State shall afford fication of withdrawal of the declaration has been
aich sent the communication an explanation, received by the Secretary-General, unless the State

¢ statement in writing clarifying the matter Party concerned has made a new declaration.
id include, to the extent possible and perti-

ace to domestic procedures and remedies Article 42
/0, or av?lablemt!xe matter. . . 1. (a) If a matter referred to the Committee in
: matter is not adjusted to the satisfaction accordance with article 41 is not resolved to the satis-
°s Parties concerned within six months after faction of the States Partics concerned, the Committee
by the receiving State of the initial com- may, with the prior consent of the States Parties con-
cither State shall have the right to refer ceed, appoint an ad hoc Conciliation Commission
to the Committee, by notice given to the (hercinafter referred to as the Commission). The good
ad to the other State. offices of the Commission shall be made available to
‘ommittee shall deal with a matter referred the States Parties concerned with a view to an amicable
-t it has ascertained that all available domestic  solution of the matter on the basis of respect for the
/¢ been invoked and exhausted in the matter, present Covenant;
aity with the generally recognized principles (b)) The Commission shall consist of five persons
tional law. This shall not be the rule where the acceptable to the States Parties concerned. If the States
10l the remedies is unreasonably prolonged. Parties concerned fail to reach agreement within three
“oumunittee shall hold closed meetings when months on all or part of the composition of the Com-
:nmunications under this article, mission, the members ofbge Con;lmissign concerning
v ios . whom no agreement has been reached shall be elected
‘C : (;ht:hc 3:‘1)(:'8;3;3&‘?& ?:sb ::;ggzgges(% by secret ballot by a two-thirds majority vote of the
.riics concerned with a view to a friendly Committee from among its members. . i
ae matter on the basis of respect for human 2. The members _of the Commission shall serve in
- 1endamental freedoms as recognized in the their personal capacity. They shall not be nationals of
wesaal. the States Parties concerned, or of a State not party
1y watter referred to it, the Committee may t© the present Covenant, or of a State Party which has
< States Parties concerned, referred to jn DOt made a declaration under article 41.

N

. ., to supply any relevant information. 3. The Commission shall elect its own Chairman
ates Parties concerned, referred to in sub- and adopt its own rules of procedure.

5, sball have the right to be represented 4. The meetings of the Commission. shall normally
.zr is being considered in the Committee be held at the Headquarters of the United Nations or

subinissions orally and/or in writing. at thebl.lriittl:g Ntationls1 O?il!ce at Gem.-._va.t H;)wever, tl:;y

L iy may eld at such other convenient places as the
C‘_"‘,f‘:‘if“ shall, w:tlu; twcll\)r-e mouthshafg:r Commission may determine in consultation with the
of cresipt of notice under sub-paragraph (b), Secretary-General of the United Nations and the States

. ‘s f sub B Parties concerned.
) 2 dwﬁl;n Ctg:ngjm ‘;h:llll ;%:il?ga?ts 5. The secretariat proviged in accordance w:::g
PR article 36 shall also service the commissions appoins
‘:/m‘;‘ ::;lcel:. e;?atement of the facts and of under this article.
T withix; the terms of sub-paragraph 6. The information receivgd and collated b¥ 'the
v .. rcached, the Committee shall confine Committee shall be made available to the Commission

e ar 1o a brief statement of the facts; the and the Commission may call upon the States Parties
tc; . 2missions and record of the oral sub- concerned to supply any other relevant information.

~ - mude by the States Parties concerned 7. When the Commission has fully considered the

ched to the report, matter, but in any event not later than twelve months

, the report shall be communicated to after having been seized of the _matter, it shall submit

. cerned. to the Chairman of the Committee a report for com-

© _as of this article shall come into force Munication to the States Parties concerned:

v ota (a) If the Commission is unable to complete its con-
e a;ggittop;?:gg;;e n]t ocg?vtﬁ:n :r:::r: sideration of the matter within twelve monts, it shall
. shall be deposited by the States Par- confine its report to a brief statement of the status of
.ctary-General of the United Nations, its consideration of the matter;

it copies thereof to the other States (b) If an amicable solution to the matter on the basis
ion may be withdrawn at any time of respect for human rights as recognized in the present
~ . the Secretary-General. Such a with- Covenant is reached, the Commission shall confine its
;rejudice the consideration of any report to a brief statement of the facts and of the solution

- subject of a communication already reached;

14
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within the terms of sub-paragraph

‘he Commission’s report shall em-
n all questions of fact relevant to

the States Parties concerned, and

wssibilities of an amicable solution
, seport shall also contain the written
record of the oral submissions made
. concerned;

ission’s report is submitted under

the States Parties concerned shall,

of the receipt of the report, notify

-« Committee whether or not they
- of the report of the Commission.

" ns of this article are without pre-
- onsibilities of the Committee under

)

. arties concerned shall share equally
the members of the Commission in
‘mates to be provided by the Secre-
Jnited Nations.

cy-General of the United Nations

4 to pay the expenses of the mem-

.. ssion, if necessary, before reimburse-

s Parties concerned, in accordance
f this article.

Article 43

" the Committee, and of the ad hoc
sions which may be appointed under
entitled to the facilities, privileges
experts on mission for the United
>wn in the relevant sections of the
s Privileges and Immunities of the

Article 44

.r th: implementation of the present

1y without prejudice to the proce-

1 the field of human rights by or

ent instruments and the conventions

ions and of the specialized agencies

. ent the States Parties to the present

. ving recourse to other procedures for

‘n accordance with general or special
ments in force between them.

A rticle 45

Jhall submit to the General Assembly
wions, through the Economic and
.anual report on its activities.

PART V

Article 46

rescuit Covenant shall be interpreted
svisions of the Charter of the United
f e constitutions of the specialized
¢ .us the respective responsibilities of

15

the various organs of the United Nations and of the

specialized agencies in regard to the matters dealt with in
the present Covenant,

Article 47

Ijlothing in the present Covenant shall be interpreted
as impairing the inherent right of all peoples to enjoy
and utilize fully and freely their natura]l wealth and
resources,

ParT VI

Article 48

1. The present Covenant is open for signature by
any State Member of the United Nations or member
of any of its specialized agencies, by any State Party
to the Statute of the International Court of Justice, and
by any other State which has been invited by the General
Assembly of the United Nations to become a party to
the present Covenant.

2. The present Covenant is subject to ratification,
Instruments of ratification shall be deposited with the
Secretary-General of the United Nations.

3. The present Covenant shall be open to accession
by any State referred to in paragraph 1 of this article.

4. Accession shall be effected by the deposit of an
instrument of accession with the Secretary-General of
the United Nations.

5. The Secretary-General of the United Nations shall
inform all States which have signed this Covenant or
acceded to it of the deposit of each instrument of ratifi-
cation or accession.

Article 49

1. The present Covenant shall enter into force three
months after the date of the deposit with the Secretary-
General of the United Nations of the thirty-fifth instru-
ment of ratification or instrument of accession.

2. For each State ratifying the present Covenant or
acceding to it after the deposit of the thirty-fifth instru-
ment of ratification or instrument of accession, the
present Covenant shall enter into force threc months
after the date of the deposit of its owa instrument of
ratification or instrument of accession.

Article 50

The provisions of the present Covenant shall extend
to all parts of federal States without any limitations or
exceptions,

Article 51

1. Any State Party to thc present Covenant may
propose an amendment and file it with the Secretary-
General of the United Nations. The Secretary-General
of the United Nations shall thereupon communicate
any proposed amendments to the States Parties to the
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